
**Executive sessions may be held:  
◻ Lease or purchase of real estate if there’s a likelihood that disclosure 

would increase the price 
◻ Consideration of the minimum offering price for sale or lease of real 

estate if there’s a likelihood that disclosure would decrease the price.

◻ Negotiations on the performance of a publicly bid contract ◻ Complaints or charges brought against a public officer or employee

◻ Qualifications of an application for public employment ◻ Performance of a public employee

◻ Agency enforcement actions (requires legal counsel present) ◻ Current or potential litigation (requires legal counsel present)

◻ Legal risks of current or proposed action (requires presence of legal 
counsel) 

The mission of the Seattle Chinatown International District Preservation and Development Authority (SCIDpda) is to preserve, promote, and 
develop the Seattle Chinatown International District as a vibrant community and unique ethnic neighborhood.

Due to the extraordinary public health circumstances related to the ongoing COVID-19 (coronavirus) 
outbreak, participation in this meeting will be telephonic. Board members will participate remotely and 
may choose to participate in person, as can any members of the public who wish to attend. 

12:00 Action 1. Call to Order – Mindy Au
Agenda Approval

Public Comment – public may sign up to address the board for up to 2
minutes on matters on this agenda

12:02 Approval 2. Consent Agenda Resolution
• Approve May Meeting Minutes
• Accept April and May 2022 Expenditure Reports
• Approve May Concurrence Requests

3. Bond Resolutions – North Lot Development Project – Josh Park

12:15 Discussion/ 
Approval 

4. Board Business
• Committee Updates

• Transition Committee – Cindy Ju/Jan Glick
• Resolution to Amend Transition Committee Charter

• Community Initiatives – Lisa Nitze
• Board Recruitment – Mindy Au

• Good of the Order – Mindy Au

12:55 Action 5. Adjourn – Mindy Au

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, June 15, 2022 

12:00 – 12:55 pm 

Virtual: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88609861641?pwd=VThPbGMzb1lGaWhkYjVEW

Wo1VnptQT09 
Meeting ID: 886 0986 1641 

Passcode: 306267 
+12532158782,,88609861641#

+16699006833,,88609861641#

1



Resolution 22-06-15-01 

RESOLUTION OF SEATTLE CHINATOWN INTERNATIONAL DISTRICT PRESERVATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

We, the Board of the Seattle Chinatown International District Preservation and Development 
Authority, via consent agenda: 

• Approve May Meeting Minutes
• Accept April and May Expenditure Reports
• Approve May Concurrence Requests

Board President  Date 

Board Secretary  Date 

2



SCIDpda Board Meeting Minutes 
May 17th, 2022 

Virtual:  
https://zoom.us/j/88609861641 

+1 (253) 215.8782 , 88609861641#
+1 (669) 900.6833 , 88609861641#

The May 2022 SCIDpda board meeting was hosted virtually via a Zoom conference. 

Board Present (via Phone Conference Call-in): Mindy Au, Casey Huang, Wayne Lau, Aileen 
Balahadia, Miye Moriguchi, May Wu, Elliot Sun, Tiernan Martin, Cindy Ju, David Della 

Staff Present: Vern Wood, Jamie Lee, Jared Jonson, An Huynh, Marc Le, Auriza Ugalino, Janet 
Smith, Naomi Saito 

1. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order by Mindy Au, Board Chair, at 05:31 PM. 

Public Comment – public may sign up to address the board for up to 2 minutes on matters on 
this agenda. No public comments were submitted to the board. 

2. Consent Agenda Resolution

Resolution 22-05-17-01: We, the Board of the Seattle Chinatown International District 
Preservation and Development Authority Board, via consent agenda: 

• Approve April Meeting Minutes
• Accept Q1 2022 Financial Reports
• Approve Resolution re: HDC Charity Federation
• Approve May Concurrence Requests

Moved: Wayne Lau
Seconded: Casey Huang

Board Approved: Mindy Au, Casey Huang, Wayne Lau, Aileen Balahadia, Miye Moriguchi, May 
Wu, Elliot Sun, Tiernan Martin, Cindy Ju 

Abstained: 0 
Absent: 4 

Resolution was approved. 

3



3. Resident Survey Results – Marc Le, An Huynh and Auriza Ugalino
• Marc Le and An Huynh summarized the results of the Resident Satisfaction Survey.
• The incoming Resident Services Coordinator Auriza Ugalino introduced themselves

to the board and shared progress in the Resident Services intern role.
• Jared Jonson shared insights into how SCIDpda will use the results of the survey,

especially in considering SCIDpda’s new development projects.

4. Board Business

• Committee Updates
o Transition Committee – Cindy Ju

 Cindy Ju informed the board that the committee has officially
selected a search firm and retained them as well as details related to
next steps.

o Community Initiatives – Tiernan Martin
 Tiernan Martin updated the board on fundraiser progress as well as

how board members can support fundraising and sponsorship efforts.
 Jamie Lee gave a quick update on details for the in-person fundraiser

and how board members can use virtual tables this year.
o Committee work plans – Mindy Au

 Mindy Au reviewed committee work plans and opened the floor for
feedback on committee work from board members.

 Board members shared insight into their work on their committees
and discussed board recruitment.

• Changes to Open Public Meetings Act – Mindy Au
o Mindy shared the updated Open Public Meetings Act with board members

and staff.

5. Adjourn

The meeting was adjourned by Mindy, Board Chair, at 6:12 p.m. 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



Concurrence Requests:  
Staff are required to seek concurrence for items that: 

• the consideration exchanged or received by the SCIDpda exceeds
$10,000, or

• the performance by the SCIDpda extends over a one year period.

June 2022 Items 

Property Operations – Bush Hotel Commercial Lease - Jared Jonson lead 

Bush Hotel – Enterprise Community Partners new lease of space 201 (formerly 
21 Progress Offices) for a term of 5 years with one 5-year renewal option.  
Tenant is making substantial improvements to the office space and is granted 
$50k rent concession.  Rent schedule is as follows: 

From June 2, 2022 until March 8, 2023, the minimum monthly rent will be $0.00 plus NNN. 
From March 9, 2023 until April 8, 2023, the minimum monthly rent will be $753.70 plus NNN. 
From April 9, 2023 until June 30, 2023, the minimum monthly rent will be $3,383.58 plus NNN. 
From July 1, 2023 until June 30, 2024, the minimum monthly rent will be $3,485.09 plus NNN. 
From July 1, 2024 until June 30, 2025, the minimum monthly rent will be $ 3,590.16 plus NNN. 
From July 1, 2025 until June 30, 2026, the minimum monthly rent will be $3,697.86 plus NNN. 
From July 1, 2026 until June 30, 2027, the minimum monthly rent will be $3,808.80 plus NNN. 

Friends of Little Saigon – $15K - An Huynh lead 

As part of our small business window repair and protection project, FLS is 
subcontracting with SCIDpda to pay for broken windows at select businesses in 
Little Saigon.  We will be working with contractor A&C Glass.  This contract will 
expire on 12/31/22 

Crescent Collaborative - $30K – Jamie Lee lead 

SCIDpda was awarded a $30K grant from the Crescent Collaborative (this is part 
of a larger grant to the Crescent from the Seattle Foundation).  This work will 
fund SCIDpda’s time to work, in conjunction with the Crescent, on policy level 
changes at the city, county, and state level to preserve small businesses.  This 
grant is through the end of 2022. 

Edge Developers, North Lot Development - $1.975 million – Jamie Lee lead 

The North Lot developer fee has increased to $9.7 million from a $5.75 million 
amount included in an executed Development Services Agreement between 
SCIDpda and Edge Developers.  This increase of $3.95 million or almost 70% 
due to the budget growing significantly due to an expanded scope related to 
project environmental features, construction cost increases, and higher interest 
rates. Due to Edge’s expanded role as personal guarantor and role as developer, 
it is recommended the increased fee be shared equally between SCIDpda and 

18



Edge Developers at $1.975 million per organization.  The amount will be paid on 
a deferred cashflow basis.  Overall fee is projected at 63% SCIDpda and 39% 
Edge. 

19



1 

RESOLUTION OF 
SEATTLE CHINATOWN-INTERNATIONAL DISTRICT PRESERVATION AND 

DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, 
A WASHINGTON PUBLIC CORPORATION 

(North Lot) 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-06-15-02

WHEREAS, Seattle Chinatown-International District Preservation and Development 
Authority, a Washington public corporation (“SCIDpda”), is organized pursuant to RCW 35.21.660, 
35.21.670, and 35.21.730-755, and Seattle Municipal Code Ch. 3.110;  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda was organized for the purpose, among others, of affording a structure 
to work for the conservation and renewal of the unique cultural and ethnic characteristic of the area 
historically known as the Chinatown-International District, including developing and operating 
affordable low income housing;  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda desires to acquire and develop real property located at 1224 12th 
Avenue S., Seattle, WA (the “Property”) as a mixed-use building to be developed as 160 apartment 
dwelling units with associated office and amenity space (the “Housing Unit”), approximately 24,800 
square feet as a senior care facility (the “AiPACE Unit”), approximately 10,000 square feet as an 
early childhood education center (the “Childcare Unit” or the “Childcare Space”), and 53 parking 
spaces (collectively, the “Project”).  The Housing Unit improvements and the Childcare Space are 
collectively referred to as the “Residential Project”);  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda has caused the formation of Lot on the Hill LLLP, a Washington 
limited liability limited partnership (the “Partnership”), to serve as owner of the Housing Unit and 
the Childcare Unit;  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda serves as general partner of the Partnership (the “General Partner”) 
and Edge Developers LLC, a Washington limited liability company, currently serves as initial limited 
partner of the Partnership; 

WHEREAS, the Property is currently owned by Pacific Hospital Preservation and 
Development Authority, a public corporation chartered by the City of Seattle (“PHPDA”).  PHPDA 
has subjected the Property to a boundary line adjustment to create three parcels, “Parcel X” to be 
owned by PHPDA, “Parcel Y” to be acquired by the Partnership and upon which the Project will be 
constructed and “Parcel Z” to be acquired by SCIDpda and developed as a future affordable housing 
project.  The Property shall be deemed to refer only to Parcel Y; 

WHEREAS, Parcel Y and Parcel Z are currently encumbered by a loan from King County 
in the original principal amount of $3,000,000, which is intended to be amended to release Parcel Y 
and to be assumed by SCIDpda in connection with the acquisition of Parcel Z (the “Existing County 
Loan”); 

 WHEREAS, Parcel Y will be purchased by the Partnership and Parcel Z will be purchased 
by SCIDpda pursuant to the terms of that certain Agreement of Purchase and Sale between PHPDA 
and SCIDpda dated October 16, 2019 (including any amendments thereto and/or assignments thereof, 
the “Purchase Agreement”);   

20



2 

WHEREAS, upon sufficient progress in construction of the Project, the Partnership desires 
to subject the Property to a condominium regime (the “Condominium”) created pursuant to a 
Condominium Declaration for the Condominium (the “Condominium Declaration”), which will 
establish three separate condominium units consisting of (i) Unit 1, i.e. the Housing Unit, (ii) Unit 2, 
i.e. the Childcare Unit, and (iii) Unit 3, i.e. the AiPACE Unit;

WHEREAS, the Partnership desires to lease the Childcare Space to SCIDpda pursuant to a 
prime lease (the “Childcare Prime Lease”);  

WHEREAS, the Childcare Prime Lease will allow SCIDpda to sublease the Childcare Space 
to El Centro de la Raza, a Washington nonprofit corporation (“El Centro”) pursuant to a sublease of 
the Childcare Space (the “Childcare Sublease”); 

WHEREAS, the Partnership intends to enter into a Condominium Purchase and Sale 
Agreement with Aging in Pace Washington, a Washington nonprofit corporation (“AiPACE”), 
pursuant to which the Partnership will sell and convey the AiPACE Unit to AiPACE (the “AiPACE 
Purchase Agreement”) upon completion of the AiPACE Unit in shell condition. 

WHEREAS, SCIDpda will serve in several capacities in this transaction including, but not 
limited to, (i) in its own capacity as a public corporation, (ii) in its capacity as General Partner, 
(iii) in its capacity as General Partner of the Partnership on behalf of the Partnership, (iv) in its
capacity as a sponsor of the Project, (v) in its capacity as guarantor under the various guarantees
required in connection with the financing of the Project, and (vi) in its capacity as property manager
of the Project (together, the “Capacities”);

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires that the Partnership purchase the 
Property from PHPDA, and in connection therewith, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires to 
negotiate, enter into, execute, deliver and perform the applicable obligations under the Purchase 
Agreement and any documents related to the purchase of the Property, including but not limited to 
the Purchase Agreement;  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in capacity as a public corporation, desires to acquire Parcel Z from 
PHPDA, and in connection therewith, SCIDpda, in capacity as a public corporation, desires to 
negotiate, enter into, execute, deliver and perform the applicable obligations under the Purchase 
Agreement and any documents related to the purchase of the Parcel Z, including but not limited to 
the Purchase Agreement;  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires that the Partnership subject the 
Property to the Condominium, and in connection therewith, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, 
desires to negotiate, enter into, execute, deliver and perform the applicable obligations under the 
Condominium Declaration and any documents related to the Condominium, including but not limited 
to the Condominium Declaration and any formation documents of the Condominium association;  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires that the Partnership lease the 
Childcare Space to SCIDpda, and in connection therewith, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, 
desires to negotiate, enter into, execute, deliver and perform the applicable obligations under the 
Childcare Prime Lease and any documents related to the leasing of the Childcare Space, including but 
not limited to the Childcare Prime Lease;  

21



3 

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in capacity as a public corporation, desires to sublease the Childcare 
Space to El Centro, and in connection therewith, SCIDpda desires to negotiate, enter into, execute, 
deliver and perform the applicable obligations under the Childcare Sublease and any documents 
related to the subleasing of the Childcare Space;  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires that the Partnership sell the 
AiPACE Unit to AiPACE, and in connection therewith, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires 
to negotiate, enter into, execute, deliver and perform the applicable obligations under the AiPACE 
Purchase Agreement and any documents related to the sale of the AiPACE Unit, including but not 
limited to the AiPACE Purchase Agreement;  

WHEREAS, SCIDPDA, in its applicable Capacities, desires to negotiate, enter into, execute, 
deliver a Regulatory Agreement (Extended Use Agreement) and such other documentation as may be 
reasonably required in connection with obtaining the allocation of Federal Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credits (the “Tax Credits”) for the Residential Project (collectively, the “Tax Credit Documents”);  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, executed the letter of intent dated July 
28, 2021, from Enterprise Housing Credit Investments (“Enterprise”), setting forth the preliminary 
terms under which Enterprise or its designee (the “Limited Partner”) will make an equity investment 
in and be admitted as a limited partner of the Partnership (the “Equity Investment”);  

WHEREAS, the Limited Partner requires that its admission to the Partnership and the rights 
and obligations of the general partners of the Partnership, developers, property manager and 
guarantors be governed by a First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership and those 
Equity Documents listed on Exhibit A, together with such other documentation as may be reasonably 
required in connection with the admission of the Limited Partner to the Partnership (collectively, the 
“Equity Documents”);  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires to negotiate, enter into, execute, 
deliver and perform the applicable obligations under the Equity Documents;  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, pursuant to a resolution anticipated to be adopted concurrently 
herewith, has separately approved the issuance, sale and delivery of its (i) Multifamily Housing 
Revenue Bonds (North Lot Apartments Project), Series 2022A, in the original aggregate principal 
amount of approximately $18,600,000 (the “Series 2022A Bonds”), (ii) Multifamily Housing 
Revenue Bonds (North Lot Apartments Project), Series 2022B, in the original aggregate principal 
amount of approximately $27,905,000 (the “Series 2022B Bonds”) and (iii) Taxable Multifamily 
Housing Revenue Bonds (North Lot Apartments Project), Series 2022C, in the original aggregate 
principal amount of approximately $18,445,000 (the “Series 2022C Bonds,” and together with the 
Series 2022A Bonds and the Series 2022B Bonds, collectively the “Bonds”), the proceeds of which 
will be used to make a loan (“Bond Loan”) to the Partnership to provide financing for a portion of 
the cost of the acquisition and development of the Project, evidenced by three promissory notes: (i) 
that certain promissory note of the Partnership related to the Series 2022A Bonds (the “Series 
2022A Note”),  (ii) that certain promissory note of the Partnership related to the Series 2022B 
Bonds (the “Series 2022B Note”), and (iii) that certain promissory note of the Partnership related 
to the Series 2022C Bonds (the “Series 2022C Note,” and together with the Series 2022A Note 
and the Series 2022B Note, collectively referred to herein as the “Notes”).  The Series 2022A Bonds 
will be acquired by Mizuho Capital Markets LLC (“Mizuho”) and the Series 2022B Bonds and Series 
2022C Bonds will be acquired by JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., a national banking association 

22



4 

(“Chase” and together with Mizuho, the “Bondholders”) and the Notes will be assigned to and held 
by U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee on behalf of the Bondholders (the 
“Trustee”);  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires to negotiate, enter into, execute, 
deliver and perform its obligations under any documents related to the issuance of the Bonds, 
including but not limited to those Bond Documents listed on Exhibit A; 

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, has executed a term sheet dated April 15, 
2021 from Bellwether Enterprise Real Estate Capital, LLC (“Bellwether”), originator and servicer for 
Mizuho, setting forth the preliminary terms of construction and permanent financing to be provided 
to the Partnership pursuant to the Bond Documents listed on Exhibit A;  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, has executed a term sheet dated February 
28, 2022 from Chase, setting forth the preliminary terms of construction financing to be provided to 
the Partnership pursuant to the Bond Documents listed on Exhibit A;  

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Bonds will be loaned to the Partnership and used solely to 
pay costs for the development of the Project and certain costs of issuing the Bonds;  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires to (i) have the Partnership obtain 
financing from the City of Seattle Office of Housing (“OH”) in the approximate aggregate principal 
amount of $18,900,000 and not to exceed $25,000,000 (the “OH Loan”) to be used to pay for costs 
of the development of the Housing Unit and (ii) negotiate, enter into, execute, deliver and perform 
the applicable obligations under the OH Loan Documents listed on Exhibit A; 

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires to (i) have the Partnership obtain 
financing from King County (the “County”) in the approximate amount of $1,000,000 (the “County 
Loan”) to be used to pay for costs of the development of the Housing Unit and (ii) negotiate, enter 
into, execute, deliver and perform the applicable obligations under the County Loan Documents listed 
on Exhibit A; 

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, may desire to (i) have the Partnership or 
SCIDpda obtain Connecting Housing to Infrastructure Program funds from the County in an 
approximate amount of up to $1,700,000 (“CHIP Funds”), which CHIP Funds will be loaned by the 
County to the Partnership or granted by the County to SCIDpda, to be used to pay for costs of 
development of the Project, (ii) in the event the CHIP Funds are granted or loaned to SCIDpda, have 
SCIDpda contribute or re-loan the proceeds of the CHIP Funds to the Partnership, and (ii) negotiate, 
enter into, execute, deliver and perform the applicable obligations under the County CHIP Documents 
listed on Exhibit A; 

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires to (i) have the Partnership obtain 
Housing Trust Fund financing from the Washington State Department of Commerce (the “State”) in 
the approximate amount of $3,000,000 (the “State HTF Loan”) to be used to pay for costs of the 
development of the Project and (ii) negotiate, enter into, execute, deliver and perform the applicable 
obligations under the State HTF Loan Documents listed on Exhibit A; 

23



5 

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires to (1) have SCIDpda make a 
capital contribution to the Partnership in the approximate amount of $9,000,000 to be used to pay for 
costs of development of the Project as costs are incurred (the “GP Contribution”), with the proceeds 
of a direct appropriation award from the State (or, in the alternative have SCIDpda loan the proceeds 
of such State award to the Partnership) and (ii) negotiate, enter into, execute, deliver and perform the 
applicable obligations under the State Appropriation Documents listed on Exhibit A; 

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires to (i) have SCIDpda make an 
upfront lease payment under the Childcare Prime Lease in the approximate amount of $950,000 (the 
“State Operating Grants”) with the proceeds of two grants from the State and (ii) negotiate, enter 
into, execute, deliver and perform the applicable obligations under the State Operating Grant 
Documents listed on Exhibit A; 

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires to (i) have SCIDpda make an 
upfront lease payment under the Childcare Prime Lease with proceeds from an upfront lease payment 
by El Centro under the Childcare Sublease with Child Care Bonus funds in the approximate amount 
of $3,000,000 (the “HSD Funds”) from the City of Seattle Human Services Department (“HSD”) 
and (ii) negotiate, enter into, execute, deliver and perform the applicable obligations under the HSD 
Documents listed on Exhibit A;  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires to (1) have SCIDpda make an 
upfront lease payment under the Childcare Prime Lease with proceeds from an upfront lease payment 
by El Centro under the Childcare Sublease with funds from the State in the approximate amount of 
$1,275,000 (the “State ELF Funds”) and (ii) negotiate, enter into, execute, deliver and perform the 
applicable obligations under the State ELF Documents listed on Exhibit A; 

WHEREAS, the Partnership’s obligations with respect to the Bonds, Bond Loan, OH Loan, 
County Loan, CHIP Funds (if obtained), State HTF Loan, GP Contribution,  State Operating Grants, 
HSD Funds, and State ELF Funds (the “Project Loans”) will be evidenced by those Documents listed 
on Exhibit A attached hereto, and such other documentation as may be reasonably required in 
connection with the making of the various loans or payments to the Partnership, all with terms as 
approved by the Authorized Representative (as defined herein) (collectively, the “Financing 
Documents”);  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires to negotiate, enter into, execute, 
deliver and perform the applicable obligations under the Financing Documents;  

WHEREAS, SCIDpda may be asked to act as guarantor for any of the Project Loans or 
the Equity Investment, and SCIDpda has found it to be in the best interests in its applicable 
Capacities to act as guarantor for any of the Project Loans and Equity Investment, as applicable, 
in furtherance of the foregoing; 

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires to negotiate, enter into, execute, 
deliver and perform the applicable obligations under any documents related to the design, 
development and construction of the Project, including but not limited to those Development 
Documents listed on Exhibit A; 

WHEREAS, SCIDpda has advanced funds for predevelopment costs for the Project, which 

24



6 

funds shall be reimbursed to SCIDpda upon the closing of the Bond Loan; 

WHEREAS, SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, desires to have SCIDpda serve as the 
property manager of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of SCIDpda deems it to be in the best interest of SCIDpda to take 
all actions reasonably necessary or advisable to (i) form the Partnership; (ii) serve as General Partner 
of the Partnreship; (iii) cause the Partnership to enter into the Purchase Agreement and acquire the 
Property from PHPDA and cause SCIDpda to acquire Parcel Z from PHPDA; (iv) form or cause 
the Partnershp to form the Condominium; (v) enter into the Childcare Prime Lease and Childcare 
Sublease; (vi) cause the Partnership to sell the AiPACE Unit to AiPACE; (vii) close on the Project 
Loans and Equity Investment; (viii) serve as guarantor for any of the Project Loans and Equity 
Investment(ix) serve as property manager of the Project; and (x) conduct predevelopment work in 
furtherance of the development of the Project. 

RESOLUTIONS 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of SCIDpda as follows: 

1. The above recitals are hereby incorporated into these Resolutions.

2. That SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to form
the Partnership and to enter into, execute, and deliver all such documents as may be
required or advisable to form the Partnership.

3. That SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to serve
as the General Partner and to enter into, execute, and deliver all such documents as may be
required or advisable to be admitted as a general partner of the Partnership.

4. That SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to take
such actions as may be reasonably required in order for the Partnership to construct, develop
and operate the Residential Project and to construct the AiPACE Unit for AiPACE.

5. That SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to
negotiate, execute and deliver such documents as may be reasonably required in order for
the Partnership to acquire the Property from PHPDA, including, but not limited to, the
Purchase Agreement.

6. That SCIDpda, in its capacity as a public corporation, is authorized, empowered and directed
to negotiate, execute and deliver such documents as may be reasonably required in order for
SCIDpda to acquire Parcel Z from PHPDA, including, but not limited to, the Purchase
Agreement (as amended) and the assumption of the Existing County Loan.

7. That SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to
negotiate, execute and deliver such documents as may be reasonably required in order for
the Partnership to form the Condominium, including, but not limited to, the Condominium
Declaration and any formation documents of the Condominium association.

25



 7 

8. That SCIDPDA, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to 
negotiate, execute and deliver such documents as may be reasonably required in order for 
the Partnership to lease the Childcare Space to SCIDpda, including, but not limited to, the 
Childcare Prime Lease. 

9. That SCIDPDA, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to 
negotiate, execute and deliver such documents as may be reasonably required in order for 
SCIDpda to sublease the Childcare Space to El Centro, including, but not limited to, the 
Childcare Sublease. 

10. That SCIDPDA, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to 
negotiate, execute and deliver such documents as may be reasonably required in order for 
the Partnership to sell the AiPACE Unit to AiPACE, including, but not limited to, the 
AiPACE Purchase Agreement, deed, real estate excise tax affidavit and any other documents 
reasonably required to convey the AiPACE Unit to AiPACE pursuant to the AiPACE 
Purchase Agreement. 

11. That SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to 
negotiate, enter into, execute and deliver the Tax Credit Documents listed on Exhibit A and 
such other documents as may be required in connection with the award of the Tax Credits. 

12. That SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to 
negotiate, enter into, execute and deliver the Equity Documents listed on Exhibit A and such 
other documents as may be required by the Limited Partner in connection with the Limited 
Partner’s admission to the Partnership. 

13. That SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to 
negotiate, enter into, execute and deliver the Financing Documents listed on Exhibit A, 
including, but not limited to, the Bond Documents, OH Loan Documents, County Loan 
Documents, County CHIP Documents, State HTF Loan Documents, State Appropriation 
Documents, State Operating Agreement Documents, HSD Documents, State ELF 
Documents, and any such other documents as may be required with respect to the Bonds, 
Bond Loan, OH Loan, County Loan, CHIP Funds, State HTF Loan, State Appropriation, State 
Operating Grant, HSD Funds, and State ELF Funds. 

14. That SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to serve as 
the guarantor under, and negotiate, enter into, execute and deliver, the guarantees listed on 
Exhibit A and such other documents as may be required by the Limited Partner, Mizuho, 
Chase and any other party providing financing for the Project. 

15. That SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to 
execute and deliver such documents as may be required for the design, construction, and 
development of the Project, including, but not limited to, the Development Documents 
listed on Exhibit A. 

16. That SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to serve 
as the property manager of the Project and to execute and deliver such documents as may 
be required to serve as property manager of the Project, including but not limited to the 
Property Management Agreement listed on Exhibit A and such other documents as may 

26



 8 

be required by the Limited Partner, Mizuho, Chase and any other party providing financing 
for the Project.  

17. That SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to execute 
and deliver any other documents as may be required to finance the development and 
construction of the Project, including but not limited to those Miscellaneous Documents listed 
on Exhibit A. 

18. That SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, is authorized, empowered and directed to 
undertake such further acts and to execute and deliver such other documents as may be 
deemed reasonably necessary or proper in order to carry into effect any of the provisions 
of these Resolutions. 

19. That any and all documents hereby authorized to be executed on behalf of SCIDpda are 
authorized to be executed or taken by any one of the following individuals, acting alone, 
or their duly appointed successors (the “Authorized Representatives”): 

Veronica Wood, Interim Executive Director  

Mindy Au, Board President 

20. Any one Authorized Representative is authorized, empowered and directed to take such 
further action on behalf of the SCIDpda, in its applicable Capacities, as such Authorized 
Representative may deem necessary to effectuate the foregoing. 

21. That any and all acts authorized pursuant to these Resolutions and performed prior to the 
passage of these Resolutions are hereby ratified and affirmed. 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Blank] 

 

  

27



9 

CERTIFICATE 

I, ________________, certify that I am the ___________of Seattle Chinatown-International 
District Preservation and Development Authority (“Corporation”) and that the foregoing Resolutions were 
duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of the Corporation held on __________________, 2022, in 
accordance with the Charter and Rules and Regulations of the Corporation upon proper notice and at which 
time a quorum was present and that the above named officers are officers of the Corporation and occupy 
the position set opposite their name. 

Dated _________________, 2022 By:______________________________ 
Name: ___________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 

28



Exhibit “A” 
List of Documents 

A. Property Documents
1. Agreement of Purchase and Sale
2. Amendment and Partial Assignment of Agreement of Purchase and Sale
3. Amended and Restated Reciprocal Easement Agreement
4. Continuing Property Conditions Agreement
5. Condominium Declaration
6. Condominium Association Articles of Incorporation
7. Condominium Association Bylaws
8. AiPACE Purchase Agreement
9. Childcare Prime Lease
10. Memorandum of Lease
11. Childcare Sublease
12. Memorandum of Sublease

B. Existing County Loan Documents
1. Second Amendment to Promissory Note
2. Second Amended and Restated Deed of Trust
3. Third Amendment to Affordable Covenant
4. Assignment and Assumption Agreement
5. Hazardous Substances Indemnity (Parcel Z)

C. Organizational Documents
1. Incumbency Certificates

D. Equity Documents
1. First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership
2. Development Services Agreement
3. Guaranty Agreement
4. Partnership Administration Agreement
5. Investor Services Agreement
6. Right of First Refusal Agreement
7. Transfer Agreement
8. Such other additional documents as reasonable or required by the Limited Partner

E. Bond Documents
1. Indenture of Trust
2. Loan Agreement
3. Regulatory Agreement
4. Bond Purchase Agreement
5. Initial Funding Requisition
6. Series 2022A Promissory Note
7. Series 2022B Promissory Note
8. Series 2022C Promissory Note

29



  

9. Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing (With Power of 
Sale) and Future Advance 

10. Environmental Indemnity Agreement 
11. Assignment of Management Agreement 
12. Assignment of Project Documents 
13. Assignment of Deed of Trust Documents  
14. Limited Guaranty, Pledge of Partnership Interests and Security Agreement 
15. Assignment of Capital Contributions 
16. Assignment of Leases, Rents and Other Income 
17. Replacement Reserve and Security Agreement 
18. Guaranty of Debt Service and Stabilization 
19. Guaranty of Completion 
20. Guaranty of Recourse Obligations  
21. Such other additional documents as reasonable or required by Mizuho 
22. Such other additional documents as reasonable or required by Chase 

 
F. OH Loan Documents 

1. Loan Agreement 
2. Promissory Note  
3. Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement, and Fixture Filing 
4. Certificate and Indemnity Agreement Regarding Hazardous Substances and Building Laws 
5. Regulatory Agreement  
6. Subordinate Assignment of Architect’s Agreement and Plans and Specifications  
7. Subordinate Assignment of Construction Contracts   
8. FIRPTA Certification 
 

G. County Loan Documents 
1. King County Housing and Community Development Contract 
2. Promissory Note 
3. Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases and Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing 
4. Affordable Housing Covenant Agreement 
5. Certificate and Indemnity Agreement Regarding Hazardous Substances and Building Laws 
6. Assignment, Assumption and Consent Agreement  

 
H. County CHIP Documents 

1. Contract or Funding Agreement 
2. Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
3. Deed of Trust (if any) 
4. Promissory Note (if any) 
5. Low Income Housing Covenant Agreement (if any) 
6. Such other additional documents as reasonable or required by the County 
7. Such other additional documents as reasonable or required by SCIDpda in the event CHIP 

Funds are re-loaned by SCIDpda to the Partnership  
 

I. State HTF Loan Documents 
1. Contract 
2. Promissory Note  
3. Deed of Trust  

30



4. Assignment, Assumption and Consent Agreement
5. Low Income Housing Covenant Agreement

J. State Appropriation Documents
1. Contract
2. Promissory Note
3. Deed of Trust
4. Low Income Housing Covenant Agreement

K. State Operating Grant Documents
1. Contract No. 21-46128-001
2. Contract No. 22-36704-001

L. HSD Documents
1. Covenants and Restrictions for Child Care Space

M. State ELF Documents
1. Contract
2. Promissory Note
3. Leasehold Deed of Trust

N. Tax Credit Documents
1. Regulatory Agreement (Extended Use Agreement)
2. Tax Credit Application

O. Development Documents
1. A102 and A201 Construction Contract
2. B101 Architect Agreement
3. Engineering Contracts

P. Miscellaneous Documents
1. Priority and Subordination Agreement
2. Reliance Certificate
3. Owner Title Affidavit(s)
4. Non-Imputation Affidavit and Indemnity
5. Estimated Closing Statement(s)
6. Property Management Agreement
7. Assignment and Assumption of Work Product Agreements (SCIDpda and the Partnership, the

Partnership and PHPDA, SCIDpda and PHPDA)
8. Assignment and Assumption of Agreement regarding Funding (HSDPDA Grant Obligations)

31



SEATTLE CHINATOWN-INTERNATIONAL DISTRICT PRESERVATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-06-15-03

(North Lot Building A) 

ADOPTED JUNE 15, 2022 

This document was prepared by: 

Pacifica Law Group LLP 
1191 Second Avenue, Suite 2000 

Seattle, Washington 98101 

32



-1-

RESOLUTION NO. 22-06-15-03 

(North Lot Building A) 

A RESOLUTION of the Board of Directors of the Seattle Chinatown-
International District Preservation and Development Authority providing for the 
issuance of tax-exempt and taxable multifamily revenue bonds in multiple series 
in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $65,000,000, the proceeds of 
which will be used to make a loan or loans to Lot on the Hill LLLP, a Washington 
limited liability limited partnership, to finance a portion of the cost of acquiring, 
constructing and equipping a mixed-use multifamily rental housing project to 
contain approximately 160 residential units and commercial and community 
facilities, located in the City of Seattle, to provide housing for low income 
persons; determining the terms and covenants of the bonds; authorizing the 
execution and delivery of an indenture of trust, a loan agreement, a regulatory 
agreement, a bond purchase agreement, a tax certificate and other bond 
documents; appointing a bond trustee for the bonds; authorizing and directing 
appropriate officers of Seattle Chinatown-International District Preservation and 
Development Authority to execute such documents as are useful or necessary to 
the purposes of this resolution; and determining related matters. 

WHEREAS, RCW 35.21.730 provides that a city may form a public corporation “in 

order to improve...the general living conditions in the urban areas of the state...”; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Seattle, Washington (the “City”), acting in accordance with 

RCW 35.21.730, formed the Seattle Chinatown-International District Preservation and 

Development Authority (“SCIDPDA”), a public corporation, for such purposes; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 35.21.745 provides that a public corporation may be empowered to 

issue bonds and other instruments evidencing indebtedness; and 

WHEREAS, SCIDPDA’s charter provides that SCIDPDA shall have and exercise all 

powers necessary or convenient to effect the purposes for which it is organized including, 

without limitation, the power to lend and borrow money and to issue bonds to provide sufficient 

funds for achieving its purposes; and  

33



-2-

WHEREAS, SCIDPDA seeks to encourage the provision of rental housing for low 

income persons by financing a portion of the costs of acquiring land and constructing and 

equipping a portion of a mixed-use multifamily rental housing project to be known as the North 

Lot Apartments Building A, containing approximately 160 residential units and ancillary 

commercial and early education facilities, to be located at 1224 12th Avenue South in the City 

(the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Project will be owned by Lot on the Hill LLLP (the “Borrower”), a 

Washington limited liability limited partnership, of which SCIDPDA will serve as the general 

partner; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of SCIDPDA deems it necessary and 

advisable and in the best interest of SCIDPDA to issue bonds in an aggregate principal amount 

of not to exceed $65,000,000 in one or more tax-exempt and taxable series (the “Bonds”), the 

proceeds of which will be used to make a loan or loans to the Borrower for the purposes 

described herein; and 

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that Mizuho Capital Markets LLC and JPMorgan Chase 

Bank, N.A. (together, the “Bond Purchasers”) will purchase the Bonds pursuant to the terms of a 

Bond Purchase Agreement (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”) among SCIDPDA, the Borrower 

and Stern Brothers & Co., as placement agent;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Seattle Chinatown-

International District Preservation and Development Authority as follows: 

Section 1. Definitions. As used in this resolution, the following terms have the following 

meanings: 

“Authorized Officers” means any of the following officers of SCIDPDA or their duly 

appointed successors: Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary or Executive Director.  

34



-3-

“Board” means the SCIDPDA Board of Directors. 

“Bond Documents” means, collectively, the documents or instruments evidencing, 

securing or relating to the Bonds, set forth in Exhibit A hereto. 

“Bond Purchasers” means Mizuho Capital Markets LLC and JPMorgan Chase Bank, 

N.A., as the purchasers of the Bonds.

“Bond Trustee” means the entity serving as trustee under the Indenture, initially U.S. 

Bank Trust Company, National Association.  

“Bonds” means, collectively, the Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds (North Lot 

Apartments Project), Series 2022A, Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds (North Lot Apartments 

Project), Series 2022B, and Taxable Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds (North Lot 

Apartments Project), Series 2022C of SCIDPDA, issued pursuant to, under the authority of and 

for the purposes provided in the Indenture and this resolution. 

“Borrower” means Lot on the Hill LLLP, a Washington limited liability limited 

partnership, of which SCIDPDA is to be the general partner. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

“Indenture” means the Indenture of Trust between SCIDPDA and the Bond Trustee. 

“Loan” means, collectively, the three loans in an aggregate principal amount not to 

exceed $65,000,000 to be made by SCIDPDA to the Borrower. 

“Project” means, depending on the context, (1) the acquisition, construction and 

equipping of the North Lot Apartments, Building A, a multifamily rental housing project to 

contain approximately 160 residential units located at 1224 12th Avenue South, Seattle, 

Washington, together with functionally related and subordinate facilities, and commercial and 

community facilities, or (2) the multifamily rental housing project and facilities so acquired, 

constructed and equipped. 

35



-4-

“SCIDPDA” means Seattle Chinatown-International District Preservation and 

Development Authority, a Washington public corporation, organized pursuant to Seattle 

Municipal Code (SMC) 3.110 and RCW 35.21.660 and .670, and 35.21.730-.755.  

All other capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned 

to them in the Indenture. 

Section 2. Authorization of Bonds and Application of Proceeds. For the purpose of 

providing financing for a portion of the costs of the Project and of issuing the Bonds, SCIDPDA 

shall issue the Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $65,000,000 in one or 

more tax-exempt and taxable series. The Board hereby determines and declares that (a) the 

location of the Project is within the service area described in SCIDPDA’s charter, (b) the Project, 

and the financing for the Project to be accomplished through the issuance of the Bonds, will 

further the purpose of SCIDPDA, (c) such financing is important for the feasibility of the 

Project, and (d) it is in the best interest of SCIDPDA to issue the Bonds for the purposes set forth 

in this resolution. The Board approves SCIDPDA’s participation in activities relating to the 

Project and its financing. All proceeds from the Bonds shall be loaned to the Borrower for those 

purposes.  

Section 3. Description of Bonds. The Bonds shall be named the Multifamily Housing 

Revenue Bonds (North Lot Apartments Project), Series 2022A, Multifamily Housing Revenue 

Bonds (North Lot Apartments Project), Series 2022B, and Taxable Multifamily Housing 

Revenue Bonds (North Lot Apartments Project), Series 2022C, of SCIDPDA, or such other 

series or naming convention as necessary, shall be in an aggregate principal amount not to 

exceed $65,000,000 and shall be dated their date of delivery. The Authorized Officers, and each 

of them acting alone, are authorized to determine and approve the final terms of the Bonds. The 

Bonds shall be issued in registered form; and shall be in such denominations, shall bear interest 

36



-5-

payable on such dates and at such rates, shall mature at such times and in such amounts, shall 

have such prepayment or redemption provisions and shall have such other provisions consistent 

with the purposes of this resolution as set forth in the Bonds and the Indenture. The Board finds 

that the issuance of the Bonds on the terms described herein and to be set forth in the Bonds and 

the Indenture, and the execution of the Bond Documents to which SCIDPDA is a party, are 

necessary and appropriate to provide sufficient funds for achieving the purposes of SCIDPDA. 

The execution of such instruments by an Authorized Officer shall be conclusive evidence of 

approval of the terms of the Bonds as set forth therein. 

Section 4. Security for the Bonds. The Bonds and the obligations of SCIDPDA under the 

Indenture shall be special, nonrecourse obligations of SCIDPDA payable solely from the 

revenues and other funds and money pledged and assigned under the Indenture as the Security 

(as therein defined), including but not limited to (a) all rights, title and interest of SCIDPDA in 

the moneys paid by the Borrower pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Notes (as defined in 

Exhibit A), and the other Bond Documents (with certain reservations and exceptions noted in the 

Indenture), and (b) moneys held by the Bond Trustee under the Indenture, except for funds, 

money or securities in the Rebate Fund, and (c) all other rights and interests in property from 

time to time pledged, assigned or transferred as and for additional security for the Bonds, all as 

set forth in the Indenture. 

SCIDPDA is organized pursuant to Seattle Municipal Code (SMC) 3.110 and RCW 

35.21.660, 35.21.670, and 35.21.730-.755. RCW 35.21.750 provides as follows: “[A]ll liabilities 

incurred by such public corporation, commission, or authority shall be satisfied exclusively from 

the assets and properties of such public corporation, commission or authority and no creditor or 

other person shall have any right of action against the city, town, or county creating such 

37



-6-

corporation, commission, or authority on account of any debts, obligations, or liabilities of such 

public corporation, commission, or authority.” 

Neither SCIDPDA nor any of the officers or employees of SCIDPDA or any members of 

the Board shall be personally liable for the payment of the Bonds or the obligations of SCIDPDA 

under the Indenture. 

Section 5. Form and Execution of Bonds. The Bonds shall be in a form consistent with 

the provisions of the Indenture and State law, shall bear the manual or facsimile signature of the 

Chair of SCIDPDA and shall be attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of 

SCIDPDA. 

The Bonds shall be authenticated by the Bond Trustee as set forth in the Indenture. No 

Bonds shall be valid for any purpose until so authenticated. The authorized signing of a 

Certificate of Authentication shall be conclusive evidence that the Bonds so authenticated have 

been duly executed, authenticated and delivered and are entitled to the benefits of this resolution 

and the Indenture. 

Section 6. Preservation of Tax Exemption for Interest on Tax-Exempt Bonds. Subject to 

the second paragraph of this section, SCIDPDA covenants that it will take all actions necessary 

to prevent interest on the tax-exempt Bonds from being included in gross income for federal 

income tax purposes, and it will neither take any action nor make or permit any use of proceeds 

of the Bonds or other funds of Bonds treated as proceeds of the Bonds at any time during the 

term of the Bonds that would cause interest on the tax-exempt Bonds to be included in gross 

income for federal income tax purposes. SCIDPDA also covenants that, to the extent arbitrage 

rebate requirements of Section 148 of the Code are applicable to the tax-exempt Bonds, it will 

take all actions necessary to comply (or to be treated as having complied) with those 

requirements in connection with the tax-exempt Bonds, including the calculation and payment of 

38



-7-

any penalties that SCIDPDA has elected to pay as an alternative to calculating rebatable 

arbitrage, and the payment of any other penalties if required under Section 148 of the Code to 

prevent interest on the tax-exempt Bonds from being included in gross income for federal 

income tax purposes (but only from amounts received by SCIDPDA from the Borrower as 

payments for those purposes).  

The Loan Agreement shall require the Borrower to reimburse SCIDPDA for all costs to 

SCIDPDA of its compliance with the covenants contained in this section, and SCIDPDA shall 

not be required to expend any funds, other than such reimbursement or other money received 

under the terms of the Loan Agreement, in so complying. 

Section 7. Approval of Issuance and Delivery of Bonds to Bond Purchasers. It is 

anticipated that the Bond Purchasers will purchase the Bonds under the terms and conditions 

contained in the Bond Purchase Agreement. The Board finds that such offer is in the best interest 

of SCIDPDA, and therefore approves the execution of the Bond Purchase Agreement. The 

Bonds will be delivered to the Bond Purchasers through the Placement Agent with the approving 

legal opinion of Pacifica Law Group LLP regarding the Bonds. 

Section 8. Authorization of Documents and Execution Thereof. The Board authorizes the 

Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, to negotiate and approve the Bond 

Documents and the form of Bonds. The signature of any Authorized Officer on a Bond 

Document shall be construed as SCIDPDA’s approval of such Bond Document and the terms set 

forth therein. The Board authorizes and approves the execution and delivery of, and the 

performance by SCIDPDA of its obligations contained in, the Bonds, the Bond Documents to 

which it is a party, and this resolution and the consummation by SCIDPDA of all other 

transactions contemplated by this resolution in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. The 

Board authorizes and directs the Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, to execute 

39



-8-

on behalf of SCIDPDA such financing statements and other documents, instruments, and 

agreements as may be necessary or desirable in connection with the issuance of the Bonds or 

required by the Bond Purchasers as a condition to the transactions contemplated by this 

resolution.  

Section 9. Acting Officers Authorized. Any action authorized or directed to be taken 

by the Secretary, Vice-Chair or Chair of SCIDPDA or the Executive Director of SCIDPDA may, 

in his or her absence, be taken by the acting Secretary, Chair, Vice-Chair or Executive Director 

of SCIDPDA, respectively. 

Section 10. Ratification and Confirmation. Any actions of SCIDPDA or its officers prior 

to the date hereof and consistent with the terms of this resolution are ratified and confirmed. 

Section 11. Changes to Titles or Parties. While the titles of and parties to the various 

documents described herein may change, no change to such titles or parties shall affect the authority 

conferred by this resolution to execute, deliver, file (if required), enforce and perform the 

documents in their final form.  

40



-9-

Section 12. Effective Date. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after 

its adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Seattle Chinatown-International District Preservation and 

Development Authority at an open public meeting thereof this 15th day of June, 2022. 

SEATTLE CHINATOWN-INTERNATIONAL 
DISTRICT PRESERVATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, a Washington 
public corporation 

By: 
Chair 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 

41



-1-

EXHIBIT A 
BOND DOCUMENTS 

1. Indenture of Trust between the Seattle Chinatown-International District Preservation and
Development Authority (the “Issuer”) and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National
Association (the “Bond Trustee”)

2. Loan Agreement between the Issuer and Lot on the Hill LLLP (the “Borrower”)

3. Regulatory Agreement between the Issuer and Borrower

4. Regulatory Agreement (Extended Use Agreement) between the Washington State
Housing Finance Commission and the Borrower

5. Bond Purchase Agreement by and among the Issuer, the Borrower and Stern Brothers &
Co.

6. Series 2022A Promissory Note by Borrower in favor of Issuer

7. Series 2022B Promissory Note by Borrower in favor of Issuer

8. Series 2022C Promissory Note by Borrower in favor of Issuer (items 6-8 are collectively,
the “Notes”)

9. Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing (With Power
of Sale) and Future Advance (the “Security Instrument”)

10. Environmental Indemnity Agreement, by the Borrower, Seattle Chinatown-International
District Preservation and Development Authority, Joel Ing, Don Mar, Evan Chan, and
Edge Developers (collectively, the “Guarantor”) in favor of the Bond Trustee

11. Assignment of Deed of Trust Documents by SCIDPDA, assigning its interest in the Loan
Agreement, Notes and Security Instrument to the Bond Trustee

12. Guaranty of Completion

13. Guaranty of Debt Service and Stabilization

14. Guaranty of Recourse Obligations

42



-2-

15. Priority and Subordination Agreement

16. Non-Arbitrage Certificate of Issuer

17. Certificates, instruments, agreements, financing statements, receipts and other documents
related to the Bond Documents

43



CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, the duly chosen, qualified and acting Secretary of Seattle Chinatown-

International District Preservation and Development Authority (“SCIDPDA”) and keeper of the 

records of SCIDPDA, CERTIFY: 

1. That the attached Resolution No. _______ (the “Resolution”) is a true and correct

copy of the resolution of the SCIDPDA Board of Directors (the “SCIDPDA Board”), as adopted at 

a meeting of the SCIDPDA Board held on June 15, 2022, and duly recorded in the minute books of 

SCIDPDA. 

2. That such meeting was duly convened and held in all respects in accordance with

law, and, to the extent required by law, due and proper notice of such meeting was given; that a 

quorum was present throughout the meeting and a majority of the members of the SCIDPDA Board 

present at the meeting voted in the proper manner for the adoption of the Resolution; that all other 

requirements and proceedings incident to the proper adoption of the Resolution have been duly 

fulfilled, carried out and otherwise observed, and that I am authorized to execute this Certificate. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this ____ day of _______, 2022. 

___________________________________________ 
Secretary 

44



Resolution 22-06-15-04 

RESOLUTION OF SEATTLE CHINATOWN INTERNATIONAL DISTRICT PRESERVATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

We, the Board of the Seattle Chinatown International District Preservation and Development 
Authority approve the attached Amended SCIDpda Transition Committee Charter. 

Board President  Date 

Board Secretary  Date 

45



Amended SCIDpda Transition Committee Charter 

Name: Seattle Chinatown International District Preservation Development Authority (SCIDpda) 
Transition Committee 

Committee Members: 
Sue Taoka  
Mike Omura       
Scott Yasui 
Vern Wood 
Tiernan Martin 
Miye Moriguchi 
Cindy Ju 

Description and Purpose 

The SCIDpda Transition Committee is established to support the transition planning, executive search, 
hiring and onboarding and initial orientation and support of the Executive Director (ED) of the Seattle 
Chinatown International District Preservation Development Authority. 

Search Oversight 

• Present recommendation for the Interim Executive Director to be voted on by the Board of
Directors.

• Establish the process, timeline and determine if SCIDpda will select an external consultant to
help guide the search process. If applicable, select and retain a search consultant who will assist
the committee throughout the process.

• Present a Search Timeline and Communications Plan to the Board of Directors.
• Assess the current position of SCIDpda, including its short and long-term plans, immediate

needs, and current priorities, in deciding which characteristics are absolute requirements, and
which are not essential but “nice to have.”

• Solicit feedback from the SCIDpda community including board members, staff, funders and
community partners and other stakeholders regarding attributes and qualifications desired in
the next leader.

• Ensure that the search process that adheres to SCIDpda’s organizational hiring practices and
aligns with SCIDpda’s mission of preserving, promoting, and developing the Seattle Chinatown
International District (CID) as a vibrant community and unique ethnic neighborhood.

• Review and approve the final job description and profile to be published and disseminated as
appropriate.

• Conduct a comprehensive search to recruit well-qualified candidates which may include
candidates from the SCIDpda community (staff, members) and from outside the community.

• Screen candidates based on agreed upon criteria.
• Select and interview as semi-finalists those candidates who present the strongest qualifications.
• Select Present slate of final candidateists and  and present recommendation ation to the Board of

Directors for approval.
• Manage the offer delivery for the selected candidate.

46



Onboarding and Orientation 

• Working in collaboration with the Executive Committee, ensure that the newly hired ED has a
successful onboard and orientation process, ensuring that they have a well-planned onboarding
to SCIDpda’s programs, people, funders, business model, budget, etc.

• Make introductions to key community contacts in program, funding and philanthropic circles
that are important to SCIDpda’s financial sustainability.

Goal Setting and Strategic Priority Alignment: 

• Within the first 45 days following hire, in collaboration with the Executive Committee, establish
annual goals for the ED to be reviewed and approved by the SCIDpda board.

• Build a shared leadership agenda and strategic priorities – ensuring that SCIDpda’s short and
long range plans, including key initiatives outlined in the Strategic Plan, are shared between ED
and the board, along with any likely challenges that the ED will face.

• Support the ED and ensure they establish themselves successfully in the role.

Time Commitment 

The Transition Committee will meet regularly to support planning efforts, and will determine recurring 
meeting times based on its agreed upon deliverables. During the period of the search (6-9 months) the 
committee may have a significant commitment of 6-10 hours/month or more in hiring the search firm, 
supporting the development of a job description and interviewing candidates. 

47


	1 - agenda - June v1
	2 - Resolution -  Consent Agenda June 2022
	Resolution 22-06-15-01

	2.1 - 2022 5 SCIDpda Board Meeting Minutes
	2.2 2022 04 Monthly Expenditure Memo
	2.3 2022 05 Monthly Expenditure Memo
	2.4 Concurrence Request - June 2022
	From June 2, 2022 until March 8, 2023, the minimum monthly rent will be $0.00 plus NNN.
	From March 9, 2023 until April 8, 2023, the minimum monthly rent will be $753.70 plus NNN.
	From April 9, 2023 until June 30, 2023, the minimum monthly rent will be $3,383.58 plus NNN.
	From July 1, 2023 until June 30, 2024, the minimum monthly rent will be $3,485.09 plus NNN.
	From July 1, 2024 until June 30, 2025, the minimum monthly rent will be $ 3,590.16 plus NNN.
	From July 1, 2025 until June 30, 2026, the minimum monthly rent will be $3,697.86 plus NNN.
	From July 1, 2026 until June 30, 2027, the minimum monthly rent will be $3,808.80 plus NNN.

	3 - 4872-7540-3038_v8_Omnibus Resolution [North Lot]
	3.1 - Bond Resolution-North Lot 2022-SCIDPDA
	SEATTLE CHINATOWN-INTERNATIONAL DISTRICT PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
	RESOLUTION NO. ___________
	This document was prepared by:
	RESOLUTION NO. _________
	Section 1 . Definitions. As used in this resolution, the following terms have the following meanings:
	Section 2 . Authorization of Bonds and Application of Proceeds. For the purpose of providing financing for a portion of the costs of the Project and of issuing the Bonds, SCIDPDA shall issue the Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed ...
	Section 3 . Description of Bonds. The Bonds shall be named the Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds (North Lot Apartments Project), Series 2022A, Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds (North Lot Apartments Project), Series 2022B, and Taxable Multifamily Hous...
	Section 4 . Security for the Bonds. The Bonds and the obligations of SCIDPDA under the Indenture shall be special, nonrecourse obligations of SCIDPDA payable solely from the revenues and other funds and money pledged and assigned under the Indenture a...
	Section 5 . Form and Execution of Bonds. The Bonds shall be in a form consistent with the provisions of the Indenture and State law, shall bear the manual or facsimile signature of the Chair of SCIDPDA and shall be attested by the manual or facsimile ...
	Section 6 . Preservation of Tax Exemption for Interest on Tax-Exempt Bonds. Subject to the second paragraph of this section, SCIDPDA covenants that it will take all actions necessary to prevent interest on the tax-exempt Bonds from being included in g...
	Section 7 . Approval of Issuance and Delivery of Bonds to Bond Purchasers. It is anticipated that the Bond Purchasers will purchase the Bonds under the terms and conditions contained in the Bond Purchase Agreement. The Board finds that such offer is i...
	Section 8 . Authorization of Documents and Execution Thereof. The Board authorizes the Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, to negotiate and approve the Bond Documents and the form of Bonds. The signature of any Authorized Officer on a ...
	Section 9 . Acting Officers Authorized. Any action authorized or directed to be taken by the Secretary, Vice-Chair or Chair of SCIDPDA or the Executive Director of SCIDPDA may, in his or her absence, be taken by the acting Secretary, Chair, Vice-Chair...
	Section 10 . Ratification and Confirmation. Any actions of SCIDPDA or its officers prior to the date hereof and consistent with the terms of this resolution are ratified and confirmed.
	Section 11 . Changes to Titles or Parties. While the titles of and parties to the various documents described herein may change, no change to such titles or parties shall affect the authority conferred by this resolution to execute, deliver, file (if ...
	Section 12 . Effective Date. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and approval.
	ATTEST:
	Secretary
	EXHIBIT A
	BOND DOCUMENTS
	1. Indenture of Trust between the Seattle Chinatown-International District Preservation and Development Authority (the “Issuer”) and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association (the “Bond Trustee”)
	2. Loan Agreement between the Issuer and Lot on the Hill LLLP (the “Borrower”)
	3. Regulatory Agreement between the Issuer and Borrower
	4. Regulatory Agreement (Extended Use Agreement) between the Washington State Housing Finance Commission and the Borrower
	5. Bond Purchase Agreement by and among the Issuer, the Borrower and Stern Brothers & Co.
	6. Series 2022A Promissory Note by Borrower in favor of Issuer
	7. Series 2022B Promissory Note by Borrower in favor of Issuer
	8. Series 2022C Promissory Note by Borrower in favor of Issuer (items 6-8 are collectively, the “Notes”)
	9. Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing (With Power of Sale) and Future Advance (the “Security Instrument”)
	10. Environmental Indemnity Agreement, by the Borrower, Seattle Chinatown-International District Preservation and Development Authority, Joel Ing, Don Mar, Evan Chan, and Edge Developers (collectively, the “Guarantor”) in favor of the Bond Trustee
	11. Assignment of Deed of Trust Documents by SCIDPDA, assigning its interest in the Loan Agreement, Notes and Security Instrument to the Bond Trustee
	12. Guaranty of Completion
	13. Guaranty of Debt Service and Stabilization
	14. Guaranty of Recourse Obligations
	15. Priority and Subordination Agreement
	16. Non-Arbitrage Certificate of Issuer
	17. Certificates, instruments, agreements, financing statements, receipts and other documents related to the Bond Documents

	CERTIFICATE

	4.1- Resolution -  Approve Amended Transition Committee Charter
	Resolution 22-06-15-__

	4.1.1 Amended SCIDPda Transition Committee Charter
	Amended SCIDpda Transition Committee Charter
	Committee Members:
	Description and Purpose
	Search Oversight
	Onboarding and Orientation
	Goal Setting and Strategic Priority Alignment:
	Time Commitment




